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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of HK Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standaione Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the ind AS financial statements of HK Toll Road Private Limited {"the Company™},
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and loss {inciuding
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended , and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.(hereinafter referred to as 'the ind AS financial
statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in
the manner so required and give a {rue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143
(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw aftention to the Note No. 36 of the financial statements which indicates that the Company has
incurred a net foss of Rs. 515.00 million during the year ended March 31, 2023. The Company has a
negative net-worth of Rs. 359.44 million as at March 31, 2023. There is possible uncertainty as to the
Company’s inability to meet its fiabilities existing at the balance sheet date as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Qur opinion is not medified in relation to this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Intangibie Assets: Toll Road Concession Arrangements

Intangible assets arising out of service
concession arrangements are accounted for as
intangible assets where the Company has a
contractual right to charge users of service when
the projects are completed.

Apart from above as per the service concession
agreement the Company is obligated to pay the
amount of premium to National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI).

This premium obligation has been treated as an
Intangible asset given it is paid towards getting
the right to earn revenue by constructing and
operating the roads -during the concession
period. The total premium payable to the grantor
as per the Service Concession Arrangement is
also recognized as an “intangible assets” and the
corresponding obligation for committed premium
is recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair
value of consideration transferred fo acquire
asset, which is the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the construction
services delivered.

The accounting for such toll road concession
arrangements is compiex due to high level of
estimation uncertainty in determining the costs to
complete. This uncertainty is due to the nature of
the operations, which may be impacted by the
technical complexity of projects and the precision
of cost estimation as at balance sheet date. The
uncertainty and subjectivity could resulf in
estimation variances which will affect the amount
of intangible assets, and hence may have a
significant impact on the financial position of the
Company. Accordingly, an intangible asset from
tolf road concession arrangement is identified as
a key audit matter,

As part of our audit, we:

*« Reviewed terms and conditions of toll
road concession arrangement, the
contractual sums and checked project
revenues and costs incurred against
underiying supporting documents that
arose the Intangible Assets.

* Conducted site visits and discussed the
progress of the projects with project
managers for indications of any potential
disputes, variation order claims, known
technical issues or significant events that
could impact the amount of Intangible
assefs recognized,

» Analysed changes in estimates of costs
from prior periods and assessed the
consistency of these changes with
progress of the projects during the year,

» Reviewed the projects revenue
generated during the current year against
the forecast initially considered.

e Assessed the adequacy of the
companies disclosures made in to the
financial statements

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’'s management and Board of Directors are responsibie for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not inciude the

financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repert in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a frue and
Tfair view of the state of affairs, profitloss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indig, including
the iIndian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financiat controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not agetecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
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expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. I
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or condifions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alf relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appiicable, related

safeguards.,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest benefits of such

comminication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditors’ Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Centrai
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. -

{A) Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit, :

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows deait

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rufe 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rutes,
2014;

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023

f)

9)

(B)

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given fo us, No remuneration has been paid by
the Company to its directors during the year and as such the relevant provisions of section 197

of the Act will not apply.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeabie iosses as at March 31, 2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced cr {oaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or Kind of funds) by the Company fo or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Uitimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; '

(B) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPCRT

To the Members of HK Toll Road Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
Page 6 of 6

Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(C) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (A) and (B) above contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner

Membership Number: 146268
UDIN: 23146268BGVPOX8616

Place: Mumbai
Date; April 26, 2023
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()

(i)

(iif)

(a} (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing fulf particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant & equipment.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing fuli particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) As explained to us, the property, plant & equipment included in intangible assets, have been
physicaily verified by the Management according to phased programme designed to cover ali
the items over the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to information and explanations, no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

{c) As per the records examined by us, the Company does not have any immovable property,
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(i}(c) of the Qrder are not applicable to the Company.

(d} The company has not revalued its property, plant & equipment and intangible Assets.

(e) As per the records examined by us and explanation given to us, the company does not have
any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the "Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1888 (as amended in
2016) and Rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(i){e) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company,

{a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii)(a) of the
said Order are not appiicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
appiicable.

The Company has not granted any unsecured loan, to the companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, The company also has not
granted any secured or unsecured loans to firms, limited lizbility partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act.

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of foans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(ifi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) The company has neither made any investments nor granted any loans, hence reporting under
clause 3(iiil(b) is not applicable.

(c) The company has not granted any loans and therefore the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest is not required, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii}(c) is not
applicable.

(d) As the company has not granted any loans during the year, there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e} The company has not granted any loan during the year, Accordingly reporting under clause
3iii{e) is not applicable,

{fy The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of ioans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(iii){f) is not applicable.
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{iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security
as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security as specifisd under Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

{vi} The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government of india
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. We have broadiy reviewed the
books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section(1} of section 148 the Act
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or compiete.

(vii) (a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company Is generally regular in depositing
the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cusioms Duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable,

{¢} According to the information and expianations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, goods & service tax, duty of
custems, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disciosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1861 as income during the year.

(iX) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon {o any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loans during the current year however there are
outstanding term lozn at the beginning of the year and the same were appiied for the purpose
for which the loans were obtained.

{d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for jong-terms purposes by the
Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, The Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries.
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() According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013.

(x) (8) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x}(a} of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3{x){b} of the Order is not applicable.

{xi) {a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b} No report under sub-section {12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the auditors in Form ALY1-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companles (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Ceniral Government.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not received any
whistle biower complaint during the year.

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

{xiii}) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) {a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of

its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued tili date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected fo its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

{xvi} (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable,

{b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-tA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(€) The Company is not a Core investment Company {(CIC) as defined in the reguiations made
by the Reserve Bank of india. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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{d) According to the information and expianations provided to us during the course of audi, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not

applicable.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company
examined by us, the Company has not incurred cash fosses in the current and in the

immediately preceding financial year.

(xviiiy There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accordingly,
clause3(xviit) of the Order is not applicable.

{xix} According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and lhe
records of the Company examined by us, on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financiat assets and payment of financial liabilities and other
information accompanying the financiat statements, there is possibie uncertainty as to the
company’s inability to meet its liabilities existing at the balance sheet date as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

{xx) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer o a fund specified in Schedule VI fo the Companies Act
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not appiicable.

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner

Membership Number: 146268
UDIN : 23146268BGVPOXE616

Piace ; Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2023
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Referred {o in paragraph 1{A) (f) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of HK Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of HK Tail Road Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as of March
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controis based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financials Controls over Financial Reporting
(‘Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (JCAI). These
responsibiiities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act").

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, fo the extent applicable o an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasenable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financiai statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financiat reporting with reference to these financia! statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exist, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to the standalone financiaf statements of the Company.,
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Referred to in paragraph (A} (f) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of HK Toll Road Private Limited

Meaning of Internal Financial controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to Financial
Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controis over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements include those poficies and procedures that:

i pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generaliy accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Centrols Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent fimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of coliusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financiai controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference fo financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.
Opinion

8. In our opinion, fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controis system over financial
reporting with reference fo financial statements and such internal financial controfs over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control aver financial reporting with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essentiai components of internat control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner Place: Mumbai
Membership Number: 146268 Date: April 26, 2023
UDIN: 23146268BGVPOX8616




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN ; U45203MH2010PTC203370
Baiance Sheet as at Mar 39, 2023

¥ Millions
. As at As at
Particufars
el Hote Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a} Inlangible assels 4 16,399.44 16,990.20
(b} Intangible assets under development 4 - -
{c) Deferred lax assels (net) 29 701,76 7i6.83
Totai Non-Current Assets 17,104.20 17.707.03
Current assets
{a} Financial Assets
{i} Cash and cash equivalenls 5a 431.76 280.82
(i) Other financial assst i1} 16.41 20.68
{b) Current Tax Assets {Nely 48.04 4575
(e} Other current assets G 7.02 6.97
Tatal Current Aosels 513,23 364,22
Total Assets 17,604.43 18,061.25
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a} Equity share capital ¥ TR 371
(b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) Ba 3,022,460 302260
{c} Other equity & {3,419.18) {32, F104.30)
lotal Equity {359.44) 15541
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabdlities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings Ba 3,911,59 5,020.85
(i) Other financial liabilities 11a 11,702.99 11,821.05
{b) Provisions 12a 408.70 392.55
Fotal Noen-Current Liabilities 16,023.28 17,234 45
Current liabilities
{a} Financiat Liabilities
{i} Borrowings b 1,110.00 555.00
{iz) Trade payables - Micro and Small Enlerprises
{ib} Trade payables - Olher than Micro and Small Enterprises 10 90.72 5175
{ii) Other financial liabilities 1ib T38.12 62.26
(b} CHher current liabilities 13 1.75 2.38
(¢} Provisions 12b 0.0 0.00
Total Current Lisbilities 1,940.59 671,39
Yotal Equity and Liahilities 17,604.43 18,061.25

The accornpanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmtaion (noles) are an integral prart of the Financial Statements,

As per our aftached reporl of even dale.

For § K Patodia & Assoclates
Charlered Accounlants
Firrt Registration No. 112723wW

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membership No. © 146268

Dale: 26.04.202%
Place: WMumbai

For and on hehalf of the Board

Mahesh Gaikwad Shdilendra Jain
Director Dhrgclor
DIN; 06664942 DNj:06393261

Date: 26.04,2023
Place: Mumbai




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC20337¢
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended Mar 31, 2023

¥ Millions
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Qperations 14 2,352.82 1,813.27
Qther Income 15 10.36 7.83
Total iIncome 2,363.18 1,820.10
Expeonses
Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 184.30 169.26
Employee benefils expense 17 24.21 21.92
Finance costs 18 2,023.90 1,952.42
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 590,75 427.56
Other expenses 19 39.94 32.49
Total expenses 2.863.10 258365
Profit / {Loss} befare tax {499.92) {773.55}
Tax expense
Current tax . -
Deferred tax charge/{credit) 15.08 -
Profitf{Loss) After Tax {615.00) {773.55)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)
- ttems that wili not ho reclassificd
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of nel defined benefit plans 0.15 0.82
- income tax relating to above - -
Other Comprehensive Incomef {Loss) 0.15 0.82
Totat Comprehensive Incomef (Loss) {514.85} (77273}
Earningf {toss) per equity share (Face Value per share T10 each)
Basic & Diluted 25 {138.78) {208.45)

The accompanying summary of significanl accounting policies and other explanatory informtaion (notes) are an integral part of the Financial

Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o in our report of even date.

For 8 K Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112723W

i

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membership No. ; 146268

Date: 26.04.2023
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Mahiesh Gaikwad
Director
EHN:06664942

Dale: 26.04.2023
Place: Mumbai

Shiaflendra Jain

DINI06393281




RK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U45203MH2010PTC 203370
Cash flow Statemont for year ended Mar 31,2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profitf {Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreclalion and amonisalion expenses
Interest income
Interest expense

Cash Gonerated from QOperations before

working capial changes

Adfustmes for:
{increase)fdecrease in financial assels except for invesiments
{Increase)decrease in other current assels
Increasef{decrease) in trade payables
Increasef{decrease) in olher financial liabililies
increasef{decrease) in provisions
Increazed{decrease) in other current Habilities

Cash gonerated from oparatians
Taxes {paid) net of relunds

Net cash generated from: operating activitios - [A)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchasefsale proceeds of intangible assels {including intangible assest under
development. Capital advances and capilal credilars)

Imerest received

Net cash {usad in) f generated trom investing activitiss - {B)

C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repaymen! of long term borrowings
Inlerest paid

Net cash used in financing activities - [C]

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivaients - [A+B+C}
Add: Cash and cash eguivalents af the beginning of the yaar
Cash and cash equivalents at the ond of the year

Compenents of Cash and cash eguivaients
Balances with hanks - in Curran! accountls

Deposits with maturity of less than three monihs
Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalents {Rater Note Sa)

¥ Millions

Yoar ended
Mar 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

{499.92) (T73.88)
590.75 427.56
(10.26) {7.83)

2,023.90 1,952.42
3,104.57 150558
4.45 {0.78)
{0.04) (0.57)
38.96 {19.69)
21.87 830
{30.43} 608
063 {12.48)
3548 {(15.34)
2,420.85 1,580.35
{2.29) {i6.11)
FART.BT EHES
{824.58) {864.96)
16.18 7.80

(814.40) T65716)

(555,00} (55.50)

{607.18} (645.88)

{1,962.18) (76135

150,94 2.40
260.82 27743
431,76 TR0.82
195.67 44.72
235.80 235,85

0,19 0.24
PR SBO.87

Previous year figures have been regrouped! reclassified! rearranged wherever necessary 10 make ther comparable Lo those for the curren! year,

The balance in currenl aceount with banks of Rs5.195.67 milion { Rs.44.72 milion) lying in Escrow account with bank held as security against borrowings.

As per our atlached report of even dale.

For § K Patodia & Assoclstes
Chartered Accounlanis
Firm Registration No. 112723W .

For and on befialf of the Board

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner 1
Membership No. | 146266

Date: 26.04,2023
Place: Mumbai

Igahebh Gatkwad
Director
DIN:06664042

Date: 26.04,2023
Place: Mumbai

bhdilendra Jain "

Difector
WN:OG 393241




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U45203MH2010PTC 203370
Statement of Changes in Equity

Note 8- Other Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Z Millions
Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the share capital of the year
year during the year
For the year ended March 31, 2021 3711 - 3711
For the year ended March 31, 2022 37.11 - 3711
B. OTHER EQUITY ¥ Millions
Equity Component Reserves and Surplus
. of compoud
Farticulars financial Securities Premium | Retained Earnings Totat
instruments
Balonae ot April (1, 2021 30 333.00 {2,466.96) {(2.131.57)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year {773.55) {773.55)
Other comprehensive income/ {Loss) for the year
Remeasurement gains/ (loss} on defined benefit
plans 0.82 0.82
Totai comprehensive income for the year - - (772.73) {(772.73)
Balance at March 31, 2022 2.30 333.09 (3,239.69) (2,804 30)
Batance at April 01, 2022 2.30 333.09 (3,232.69) {2,904.30}
Profitf {Loss) for the Year {515.00} {51500}
Other comprehensive income for the quarier
Remeasurement gains/ (loss) on defined benefit
plans 0.15 0.15
Yotal comprehensive income for the Year - - (514.85) {514.85)
Bazlance at Mar 31, 2023 2.30 333.09 (3,754.54) {3,418.15)

As per our altached report of even dale.

For 5 K Patodia & Assoclates
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Registration No. 112?23W/

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membership No. : 146268

Bate, 26.04.2022
Place: Mumbai

For and on b\e!\alf of the Boadrd

Matesh Galkwad
Director
DIN:0G664942

Dale: 26.04.2023
Piace: Mumbai

SHallendra Jain
Ditector
DiY:06393281




HK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2023

Note 1: Corporate information

HK Toll Road Private Limited (the “company™) was awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis,
Design, Engineering, Construction, Operation and Maintenance for Six laning of Hosur - Krishnagiri
section of National Highway — 7 (km 33.130 to km 93.000) in the state of Tamilnadu under the Concession
Agreement dated July 2nd, 2010 with National Highways Authority of india. The Concession Agreement is
for a period of 24 years from appointed date as defined in clause 15.1.1. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Lid, a public company registered as per section 3 of the Companies
Act, 1956. During the year, The Company has started Toll collection w.e.f. 07" June 2011.

The financial statements were autherized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 26, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-epen the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorperated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at at Reliance Center,19, Walchanda Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai —

400001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

3.4

These Financial Statements comply in alf material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ing AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule

Il of the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
fiabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in T Miltions, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disciosures mandated by Schedule Ill to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pranouncements and

regulations.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilittes in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

*  Expected o be reafised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

«  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= His expected to be setfied in normal operating cycle

*  ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier,

the reporting period
All other ligbitities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

-

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in™
cash and cash eguivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




HK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2023

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

33

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured vsing the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ( 'the functional currency'}. The functionat statements
are presented in indian Rupees (%), which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market padicipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principai or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liahility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generale econoniic benefils by using the assel in #s highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are avalable to measure falr value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair vaiue measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or fabilities
Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statemenis on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether {ransfers have occurred between fevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period,

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other refevant documents.

The management aiso compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonabie.

For the purpose of falr value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
refevant notes.

Disclosures for vaiuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments,
including those carried at amorlised cost (note 20) and Quantitalive disclosures of fair value measuremedt

hierarchy (note 21).
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3.5

Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control- based revenue recognition
model and provides a five step application approach to be foliowed for revenue recognition.

« identify the contract(s) with a cusfomer;

+ |dentify the performance cbligations;

« Determine the transaction price;

» Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

+ Recognize revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligations

Revenue from contracts with cusiomers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred fo the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects o
be entitfed in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when no significant

uncertainty exists as {o its realization or collection.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be refiably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits wili flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for the Company's

activities, as described below.

Tol revenue

The income from toll revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.

Others

Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.

Income on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments, Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking info account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost interest

income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where # Builds, Operates and Transfers {BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life,

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
modet is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license} to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
{0 account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operafion services) under a single centract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the refative fair values of the services

deifivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair vaiue of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Infangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are completed.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amount of
premium to National Highways Authority of India {NHAI). This premium obligation if any is freated as
intangible asset as it is paid towards getting the right to earn revenue by constructing and operating the

roads during the concession period.

Hence, the fotal premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘Intangible Assets’ and the corresponding obligation for committed premium is recognized™

as premium ohligation.
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3.6

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toil
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total felf revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 22 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are reguired to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to setfie the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-fax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the

risks specific to the liability.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rales and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporiing date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax refating to items recognized ouiside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situafions in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Aiternate Tax {'MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current fax
in the statement of profit and toss. MAT paid in accordance with the iax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normai tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a)has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b}intends either to settie on a net basis, or o realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneousiy.

Deferred tax

Deferred fax is provided using the balance sheet approach on femporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabifities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow alf or part of the deferred
tax asset fo be ulilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and gre:
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aflow the deferrgd dax:

asset to be recovered.
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3.7

3.8
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is setfied, based on tax rates (and tax faws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity), Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation o the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if & legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabifities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxahle entify and

the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. Alf other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent lizbility is a possible cobligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence ar non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabilily also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
liabifity is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Cantingent assel is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed

where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may nat be recoverable. An impairment foss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair vaiue less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identiffable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has & present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision fo be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time vaiue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks spedific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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3.12 Employee benefits

3.13

{i} Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recoghized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporing period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liahilifies are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{il} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege {eave to its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated porlion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that wilt iapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be avaited, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as nen-current. The
amounts of current and non-current labilily are based on actuarial estimates.

(ifi} Post - employment obligations

The Company cperates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
{b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liabilily or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reperiing period tess the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caiculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation,

The net interest cost is cafculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in empioyee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are inclded in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obiigation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions te publicly administered provident funds as per local
reguiations. The Company has no further payment cbligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the coniributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalentis in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
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3.14

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash and short-
{erm deposits, as defined above, net of ouistanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assefs
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised inifially at fair value, in the ¢ase of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of direcily attributable transaction cost to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require defivery of assets within a time
frame established by reguiation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits io purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

= gt amoriised cost
v at fair value through profit or loss (FVYTPL)
=  at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financiat assets are measured at the amoriised cost if both the foliowing conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest {SFPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most refevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets {except invesiments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Inlerest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profif and Loss. This category generally applies fo loans and other
receivables,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive
income

All investments in scope of ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in
mutual funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election
on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no
recycling of the amounts from Other Comprehensive income (OC!) 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss,
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
eqguity. Instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vaiue with all changes
recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's sithilay
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when;

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
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obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially aif the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred is rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward iocking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been & significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss mode!:
~ Loans receivables measured at amortised cost

*  Retentions receivable from NHAI

*  Loans given lo employees
The impairment methodelogy for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost; Loans receivables at amortised cost are generaily short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the inftial recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is fow only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no joan loss allowance needs to be

recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit oss (ECL'} impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss {P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities

tnitial recognitien and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

Ali financial liabilities are recognized initiaily at fair value.

The Company's financial fabilities include trade and other payabies, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by,
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral paaf
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in fingeitEF-Easts in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.15

3.16

(i

—

L.oans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the fransaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payabies are ohligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less {or in the normal operaling cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liahilities.

w

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair vaiue and subsequently measured at amonrtised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR {Effective inlerest rate} method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as weil as

through the EIR amertization process.
De-recognition

A financial fiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing fiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is freated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, {o realize the assets and setlle the fiabililies simultaneously.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporiing provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continuvally evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounfing
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are

disclosed below,

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounfing to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix C of ind AS 115 'Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-lo-private servjceé




HK Toil Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2023

concession arrangements. The Company has entered inte concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFQT) basis
the toli roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toli roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAD,

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangibie assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

{if) iIncome taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses 1o the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
urtused tax losses can be utilized. However, the utitization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation 1o tax losses.

(iii) Amortization of concession intangible assets

The intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed, The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits,

(iv)Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concessicn
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations to discount these amounts o their present vaiue are based on the estimated timing of

expenditure occurring on the roads.

‘The disceunt rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure,

3.17 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time fo time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements ~This amendment requires the entities to disciose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annuat periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments o Ind AS 8 fo help entities
distinguish changes in accounting pelictes from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

ind AS 12 — income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption
s0 that it does not apply 1o transactions that give rise to equal and offsetling temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annuaf periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023,

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development) ¥ Miilions

Particulars Intangible Assets ln;angiblelassets:
Toll Colfection Right INHAI Premium | Ynder developmen

Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 11,439.58 8.254.10 857
Additions - - -
Capitalised/ Adjusted/Disposal - - (8.57)
Closing gross carrying amount 11,439.58 8,254 10 -
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Upening accumulated amortization and impairment 1,186.15 1,079.78 -
Amartization charge for the year 249 56 178.00 -
Capitalised! Adjusted/Disposal -
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 1,445.71 1,257.78 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 9,993.87 6,996.31 -
Year ended Mar 31, 2023
Opening gross catrying amount 11,439.58 8,254.10 -
Additions - - -
Capitalised/ Adjusted/Disposai - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 11,439.58 8,254.10 -
Accumuiated amortization and impairment
Opening accumuiated amortization and impairment 1,445 71 1,257.77 -
Amortization charge for the Qir ended 347.63 243.13
Capitalised
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 1,793.34 1,500.90 -
Net carrying amount as at Mar 31, 2023 9.646.24 6,753.20 ~
Noie:

1) intangible Assest pledged as securily with lenders.
2) Flat ar Boisar in Maharashtra of Rs 1.63 Miltion is included in gross block of Infangible Assets.
3} Afl the title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company

4} No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prehibition) Act, 1988, Therefore the disclosure of delails of Benami

Property held is not applicable.
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Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current 7 Miffions
Particul As at As at
articutars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 195.67 44 .72
Deposits with maturity of less than three months 235.90 23585
Cash on hand 0.19 0.24
431.76 280.82
MNote § {b) - Other financial assets - current
Security deposits 2.92 -
Inferest accrued on fixed deposits 112 0.84
Others Receivabie 12.07 7.46
Claims Receivable From NHAI 0.30 12.28
16.41 20.68
Note 6 - Other current assets
Advance to vendors 0.77 -
Advance to employees 0.08 0.10
Prepaid Expenses 0.92 0.55
Duties and taxes receivable 4.10 558
Gratuity Advance 1.13 0.74
7.02 6.97




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 7 - Share Capital and Other equity
Note 7a - Authorised Share Gapital
T Millions
. As at As al
Particulars Nos of Bhares Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Al the beginning of the year 50,00,000 50.00 50.00
Add : increase during the year of 10 each - -
Al the end of the year 50.00 50.00
Note 7b - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
share capital
Af the beginning of the year 37,11,000 3711 3741
Add : Shares issued during the year of T10 each - -
kYR K] 3711

At the end of the year

Neto 76 - Terme and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/~ Each holder of the share is
entitled to one vote per share In he evenl of liquidalion.

Note 7d -~ Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year 37,171,000 37,141,000
Add . Nos of Shares issued during the year - -
Nos of Shares af the end of the year 37,11,600 37,111,000
Note 7e - Shares held by hofding Company
or their subsidiariesfassociates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
{Holding Company) 37,11,000 37,111,000
Note 7§ - Details of Sharehoiders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

100% 100%

% of hoiding

The Holding Company has pfedged 11,413,300 Equity Shares of the Company for availing various term loans.

Note 79 - No of Shares Pledged/safeksep & unpledged by the Promotors : -

Partioul As at 3ist As at 31st March
artiouwrars March 2023 2022
Pledged Shares 1113300 1113300
Safekeep 705080 705090
Unpledged 1892610 18592610
Tolal 3741000 3711000
Note 8a - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of eguity)
Al the beginning of the year 3,022.60 3,022.60
Increase / {decrease) during lhe year - -
At the end of the year 3,022.60 3,022.80

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Holding Company alongwith its Subsidiaries

i} Subordinated debt is the part of Holding Companys Equily from the promoters of the Companys for the project, which is
unsecured and interest free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders;

if) Mo repayment/redemptionfinierest servicing allowed during the moratorium period of the long term project loan.

Note 8 - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of equity}

At the beginning of the year/ half year
Increase / (decrease) during the year

Af the end of the year

2.30

2.30

230

2.30
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T Millions
As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 8c - Retained Earnings
At the beginning of the year {3,239.69) (2,466.96)
Net Profit for the year (515.00) (773.55)
items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in
retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-empioyements obligations 0.15 0.82
{net of tax}
Dividends paid during the year - -
At the end of the year (3,754.54) (3,239.69)
Note 8d - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 333.09 333.09
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
333.08 333.09

At the end of the year

Nature and purpose of securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the act.
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Financial Lizbilities

Note 9 (a) Borrowings - Non current ¥ Millions
rticul As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
From banks
- Rupee term loan 3,911.59 5,020.85
Totat 3,811.59 5.020.85
Secured by:

a) First morigage and charge of all immovable properties, present and fulure, save and except the project Assels.
b} First charge by way of hypothecation of all movable assels, both present and fulure, save and except the project Assets.

¢) First charge on ail intangible assels save and except Project assets.
d) First Charge on receivabies, book debts, cash and cash eguivalents including any other bank accounts and other assets, present and future,

- e} First Charge on government approvals, insurance policies, uncalled capilal, project documents, guaraniees, lelter of credit, performance
warranties, indemnities and securities given to the Company.

Repayment Terms for Term loans -

Maturity Profile of Secured Term Loan (Principal undiscounted} are as under : 3 Millions
Financial Year Amount
2023-24 1110.00
2024-25 1387.50
2025-26 1665.00
2026-27 852.08
Total 5024.58
Note 9 {b) - Borrowings - Current
As at As al
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Maturilies of long term debt 1,110.00 555.00
1,110.00 555.00
Note 10 - Trade Payables
As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables - Other than Micro & Smali Enlerprise 90.72 51.75
90,72 51.75

{a) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 20068” is based on the

infermation available with the Company regarding the stalus of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received
from them on requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amounisfinierest payable amounts for defayed payments to such
vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and
accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding inferest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brough! forward_from.

previous years.

Trade Payables ageing schedule
Outsanding for following periods from date of payment
LESS N
than 1 More than
Particulars Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years{3 Years Total L
1) MSME - - - - -
2) Others -CY 46.95 8.02 0.85 33.80 90.72
43.88 3.61 4.06 51.75
3) Disputed Dues - MEME - - - - [
4) Disputed Dues - Others 7 - - - - 0
Total i T 46.95 9.02 0,95 33.80 20.72
T T 43.88 381 4.06] 33.80 51.75




Note 11 (2] - Other financial liabilities - Non - current

i AsTat A% at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
NHAI Premium Payable 11,702.99 11,821.05
Relention money payabig - -
Total 11,702.99 11,821.05
Note 11 {b) - Other financial tiabitities - current 2 Miltions
] —  Asat As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 21, 2022
NHAI Premium Payabie 643.10 -
Interest due but not paid 10.89 -
Creditors for Capitai expenditure 34.10 34.10
Employee benfits payable 750 6.66
Retention Money Payable 42.53 21.50
Total 73812 62,28
Retention Money Payable ageing schedule
| Qutsanding for following periods from date of payment
Less than fdore than
Particulars 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 13 Years Tolal
Relenlion Money Payable CY 24.52 9.15 0.54 8.32 42.53
$1.20 0.59 0.78 8,93 21.50
Tolal 24,52 9.15 0,54 8.32 42,53
11.20 0.59 0.78 8.83 21.50
Note 12 (a} - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity - -
- Leave encashment 0.0% 0.04
Others
- Resurfacing expenses 408.69 392.51
408.7¢ 392.55
Note 12 (b) - Provisions - Current
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity - -
~{ieave encashment - 0.00
0.00 0.00
Movemeitt in Provisions
Resurfacing provisions
At the beginning of the year 392.51 343.86
Charged / (credited) to profit or loss
Provision made during the year 86.25 77.01
unwinding of discount 55.45 41.26
MMR Expenses incurred during the year {125.53) { 69.62)
At the end of the Quarier 408.68 392 51

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAL the Company is obligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under concession. The
Company accrues the provision required towards resurfacing cost in statement of profit & loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 ' Provisions,
Confingent Liabilitles and Contingent Assets. Refer Note no. 3.5 maintenance obligations. These provisions are made based on the best
estimate of the management which are reviewed periodically and necessary effect for the changes, iIf any, are taken in the financials on

prospective basis. o

Note 13 - Other current liabitities

Advances from Customers

Duties and taxes payable 1.75 2.38

17 - 7.38
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Particutars

Note 14 - Revenue

Operating income
Income from toll colleclions
Other Operating income

Note 15 - Other income

interest income
- On fixed deposils
- Others

Excess provision for Leave Encashment wrilten back

insurance claim received

Miscelianeous income

Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subconfracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handiing Charges

Sile and other direcl expenses

Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses
Salaries wages and bonus

Conlribulion to pravident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashmenl

Staff welfare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

Interest on foan

Interest unwinding on premium deferment
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Unwinding of discounl on retention money

Note 19 - Other expenses

Rates & taxes

insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneralion
Traveling and Conveyance
Gther miscelianeous expenses

% Millions
Year ended Year ended
Mar 34, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,347.22 1,806.27
5.60 6.00
7352.82 1812.27
9.38 7.70

0.73 -
- 0.11

0.25 .
(.00 0.02
10,36 7.83
41.37 41.67
132.99 106.98
9.49 10.16
0.27 0.18
0.18 0.28
184.30 159.26
22.14 19.40
1.34 1.21
0.32 .48

0.09 -
0.32 0.63
24.21 21.92
618.81 G41.95
1,150.76 1,137.72
55.45 41.26
167.61 131.49

31.27 -
2,023.90 1,952.42
12,62 11.47
20,97 18.98
0.18 0.25
2.76 .13
341 1.66
39.94 32.49
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Signficance of financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments T Millions
. As at As at
P }
articulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
At amorfised Cost
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 1.42 0.94
insurance Claim receivables 12.07 7.48
Retention Money receivable from NHAI - -
Cash and Cash equivalent 431.76 280.82
Claims Receivable From NHAi 0.30 12.28
Security Deposit 292 -
Total financial assets 451,069 301.50
Financial liabitities
At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings 5021.59 5575.85
Trade Payables 90.72 51.75
Retention money payabie 42.53 21.50
NHAI Premium Payable 12346.09 11821.05
Inferest accrued but not due 10.89 0.00
Employee Benefits Payable 7.50 6.66
Creditors for capital expendifure 34.10 34.10
Total financial liabilities 17553.42 17510.91
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Note 21 - Fair value Higrarchy

T Millions
: As at As at
Particulars
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{a} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed
Financial liabilities
Level 3
Floating Rate Borrowings 5,021.59 567585
Retention money payable 42.53 21.50
NHAI Premium Payable $2,346.09 $1,821.05
Total financial Habilities 17,4%10.22 17,418.40
Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that
have quoted price: The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are not raded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter
derivatives} is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely
as liltie as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
cbservable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Levet 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in levet 3.
This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging dernivative included in fevel 3
Valuation techrique used to determine fair value
Bpecific valualion techniques used Lo value financial instruments include;
* lhe use of quoted market prices or dealer quoles for similar instruments
+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange conlracls and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rales at
the balance sheet dale
« the fair value of the remaining financial instrumenls is determined using discounted cash fiow analysis.
{b) Fair value of financial assets and liabllities measured at amartised cost % Millions
” As at Asat
Particufars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financiaf liakilities at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 5,021.59 5,575.85
Retention money 42.53 21.50
NHAI Premium Payable 12,346.09 11,821.05
17,410.22 17,418.40
Fair value of financial Jizbilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 5,021.59 5,575.85
Retention money 42,53 21.50
NHAI Premium Payable 12,348.09 11,821.05
17,410,22 17, 418.40

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance claim receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, inlerest accrued, emplayee benefits payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due o their short
lerm nature. For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.




6106601
ZZ0T 'LE yoiepwy
palicisioge]

£T0Z “LE yduey

89'¢B9'61
TT0Z 'L yorew
89'EBY'BL

£20Z ‘1€ uodep

S9A ! 1owesd o) sygeded wmwaig
uoneyu

- PeuLIsep st uonenobau-ss 20 Buloud-a1 yoiym uodn siseg

Aleaa : sojep Buond-gy

N - suoneBiqo [emetuad pue JUBWISSAU

S2A L POUSd UISSEOLICD JO pUL BY) 1B LNBI iNRNSELL
1N T sopuelB uoISsaoU0s ok JURIB JuBLSIAL)

HOL [ UonEIaUNWRY

GE0T - 1 LOZ “UCISSSDU0D 10 poLISd

4
AemyfiH jeuonen uo iBeuysiny pUe mnsox
Usamiaq peod 1[0} aue xis Buo| asawopy 0g
jo uonessdo pue Buipyng ‘ubisep ‘Buousuiy

PEIW Bleaug
PEGY 101 MH

SNEA OO JaN

SNJBA 400G $50.5

Sjessy aiqIbuEU]|

juawsbuene ay) jo suLa) JuesYILBIg

Jswabuele ay) jo uoiduosag

Anus jo swen

SUOHEHW 2

S3IMEs) VB - spuswaliueLe UOISSaOLI0D -2 J1ON

£20T "1 YOIEW Papus 1eak 3y) JO) PUE JO SE SJUSWAELS {eloteUl] Ayt 03 SajO0N
CALINIT ILVARS QYOX 1701 MH

i

i

i

T




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 23 - Financial risk management
The Company activilies exposes it to market risk, liguidity fisk and credit risk,
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is managa the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurament Managament

Cregit risk Cash and cash equivalents,  Aging analysis Gredit Biversification of bank
trade receivables, financial ratings depasits, credit limits and
assets measwed at amortised fellers of credit
st

Market risk — inlerest rate Long-term borrowings at Sensitivily analysis Actively Managed

variabie

Borrowings and other liabitities Roliing cash flow forecasls Avatlability of committed
credil lines and borrowing

facilities

Liguidity fisk

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a project Tnance team and central ireasury team {group freasury) under policies approved by
board of difectors. Group teeasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the group’s operating units. The
Management of the Company provides wrillen principtes for overall risk managemenl, s well as policles covering specilic areas, such as interesl

tate risk and credi risk, use of derivative finandial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess lrgquidity.

Commouity risk:
The Company requires for tmplementation {construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bilumen, steel and olhar

construction materiats. For which, the Company entered inte fixed price conlract with the EPC contractor and O&M Conlraclor so a5 to manage
our exposure to price increases in raw malerials. Hence, the sensitivily analysis is not requited

Market risk — interest rate risi

The Bark loans follows floating rates with resels defined under agreements. White interest rale flucluations carty a risk on knancials, the Company
earn toll income which is linked 1o WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a} interest rate risk exposure ¥ Milllons

Particulars Mar?i,a;()zii Marct? ;1%2022

Vatiable Rate Borrowings 5,024.59 5,575.85
Total 5,021.59 5.575.65

b) Sensitivity analysis

Profit or toss is sensitive 1o higherflower interes| expenses from barrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

tmpact an profitioss after tax

Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis poinls (37.15) (41.28)

37.18 41,26

Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Liguidity risk - Table

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet is present and future cash and collaterat obligations without
incurring unacceptable losses. The Company objective is fo, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and
coliateral requirements. The Company closely monitors ifs liguidity position and deploys a robust cash managementi system. If
maintains adequate sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis
of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle trade payablss is about 30 to 60 days.
The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonabile approximation of fair value. The foliowing table analyses financial Hiabiities

by remaining contractual maturities.

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial Nabilities and net-settied derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractuai maturity date. Derivative financial
liabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maiurities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

¥ Mitlions
As at Mar 31, 2023 Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,110.00 3,811.59 5,021.59
Trade gnd other payables 90.72 - 90.72
QOther financial Habflittes Non current 11,702.99 14,702.99
Other financial liabilities Current 738.12 - 73812
Total non-derivatives 1,538.84 15,614,659 17.553.42
As at March 31, 2022 Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 555.00 5,020.85 567585
Trade and other payables 51.75 51.75
Other financial liabilities Non Current - 11,821.05 11,821.05
Other financial liabifities Current 52.26 52.26
Total non-derivatives 669.01 16,841.90 17,510.91




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 24 - Capital risk management

The Company objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders

. and benefits for other stakeholders, and

Maintain an optima! capitaf structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, sub-debts and all
other equity reserves attributabie to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital management is

te maximize the sharehoider vaiue.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capitat fo shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate debt, The Company monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capitat plus net debt. The Company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capitai on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

U Milions
Particulars
As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 31st March, 2022
Net debt (a) 4,589.83 5,295.03
Equity {b) (359.44}) 155.41
Net debt to eguity ratio (a) / (b) (12.77) 34.07
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 31st March, 2022
Net debt (a) 4,589.83 5,285.03
Equity (b) (359.44) 155 .41
Nebt debt plus Equity (¢ = a+h) 4,230.39 5,450.44
1.08 0.97

Gearing ratio {a) / (c)




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note - 25 Earning per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Prefit / Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs Millions} (A) (515.00) (773.55)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per share (8) 37,11,000 37,111,000
Earnings / (Loss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees) (A/B) {138.78) {208.45)
10.00 10.00

Nominal value of equity shares (Rupees)
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HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 26 - Related Party Transactions

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed under the Companies fAccounting Standard) Ruies, 2015, the related parties and

transactions are disclosed below :

Hotding Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Shri Shailendra M Jain - Director
Shn Mahesh S Gaikwad - Director

Details of transactions and closing balance

Particulars

Transactions during the year :

Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Transaction with key managemeant personnet
Compensation of key management personne!

Balances at the year end

Trade Payabie
Reliance infrastructure Limited

Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Equity share capital (excluding premium)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

T Millions

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

24.21

3,022.60

37.11

0.08

0.45

24.21

3,022.60

3711




HK TOLL RCAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 27 - Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans T Miflions
a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and [oss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no
other obfigations other than the confribulion payable to the respactive authorities.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 1.34 1.21
Total 1.34 1.21

a) Defined benefit plan
The Company Group has a defined benefit plan {Gratuity) for its employses. The gratuily plan is governed by the Payment of Graluity Act, 1872

Under the Acl, employee who has completed five years of service is entitfed to specific benefit. The level of benefils provided depends on the
member's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has complaled five years or more of service gets a gratuily on
depariure at 15 days salary (fast drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with

tolal ceiling on gratuity of Rs. 1,000,000/ Fhe saig gratuily plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefil obligation over
the year are as follows:

Opening defined benefit liability / (assets) a1 467
Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

Current service cost .37 .42
Pasl service cost - -
Inlerest cost on benefit obligation 0.18 0.26
{Gain} / losses on settlement - -
Net benefit expense 0.55 0.68
Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCH

Measurement during the period duglo

Return on plan assets, excluding amourits included in inlerest expensef(income} - -
Actuarial foss / {gain) anising from charge in financial assumplions {0.16) 0.27
Actuarial loss f {gain} arising on account of demographic assumptions 0.04 {0.01}
Experience {gainsilosses 0.05 (1.04}
Amount recognized in QCI (0.07] {0.78)
Benefits paymenls from plan {0.57) {1.37)
Ciosing net defined benefit liabllity f (asset) KX 3.21
Opening fair vafue of plan assels 398 3.70
Net empioyee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

Interest cost / {incoma} on plan asget 0.22 0.21
{Gain) / losses on selilement - -
Net henefit expense 0.22 0.21

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (QCI)
Measurement during the period due fo ;
0.07 0.04

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expensefiincome)

Amount recegnized in QCI 0.07 0.04
Employer contributions/premiums paid - -
Benefils Paid - -
Ciosing fair value of plan assets 4.24 3.85




HK TOLL RCAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financiai Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

2 Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
Warch 31, 2022

The net (liabililyasset disclosed above relales (o funded plan is as follows:

Frasent value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Amaount not recognised as an asset (asset ceiling)

Net liability is hifurcated as follows :
Current
Mon-currenl

Totai

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets {p.a)
Salary escalation rate (p.a.}

Moralily pre-relirement

A quantitative analysis for significant assumgption is as shown below:

Assumplions -Discuunl iade

Sensitivily Level

Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % increase
impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensitivily Level

Impact on defined benefit obligalion -in % increase
impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease

The lable below shows lhe expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan

based on past service of the employeas as at the valuation date:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Between 2 and 5 years

Belween 6 and 10 years

For and Beyond 11 years

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reparting
periad

Plan Asscfs Composition

Hon Quoted
Insurer Managed Funds

3.4 3.21
4.24 3.95
0.0 0.00
{1.13) {0.74)
1.31% 5.66%
T.31% 5.66%
8.00% B8.00%
indian Assured Indian Assured Lives
Livas Mortality Iortalily
(2012-14) (2006-08)
100 bp 100 bp
»2.93% -3.10%
3.14% 3.353%
100 bp 100 bp
3.09% 2.22%
-2.94% -3.07%
0.56 0.57
2.20 247
0.78 0.78
0.49 0.41
4.02 3.83
4 years 4 years
4.24 3.95
4.24 3.95




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 28 - Income Tax Expenses

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to :

T Millions

Particufars

A5 at
March 31, 2023

A5 al
March 31, 2022

{a} Income tax expense

Current fax

Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior pericds
Total current tax expense

Deferred fax
Decreasef{increase) in deferred tax assets
{Decreaseliincrease in deferred tax liabilities
Fotal deferred tax expensef{benefit)

Income tax expense

Income tax expanse is attributable to:

Frofit as per ind AS fiunt conbnuing operations before income tax expense
Income Tax as per effective Tax Rale of 26%

Tax Effect of Permanent timing differences

Total Tax Expense

52.08
(37.01)

15.08

15.08

{499,92)
(129.98)
145.06

{773.55)
{201.12)
20112

15.08




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 29 - Deferred tax {Ifability} ! Asset

Z Milliens
The batance comprises temporary differences attributable to :

. As at As at
Particulars Mar31,2023  March 31, 2022
Deferred tax liability on account of:
intangible assets 2,844 .45 288138
Borrowings 0.58 0.65

tangible assets under development
Other
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Unused tax losses caried forwarg S47.77 1,072.59
Leave Encashment 0.06 8.01
NHAJ Premium payable 2,492.76 2,481.32
MMR Provision/ Retention Money 10526 10205
Less : Excess deferred tax not proviged in CY {B7.41)
Net deferred tax {liabilitylfasset 70178 716.83
Movement in deferrad tax Hability / asset

Unused Tax NHA! Premium L Intangibie .

. T
Particulars Losses Payasile MMR Provision assets Borrowings Qthers otat
As at April 01, 20241 1.083.61 248287 88.40 {2,903.65) {15.40) (0.0 716,83
Chargedi(credited) during the year

{0 profit or foss {11.02) 28.44 12,65 2227 14.75 - 87.11

it other comprehensive income - - - - - .
Excess deferred fax not provided in CY {B7.11) {67.11)
As at March 31, 2022 1,072,590 2,491.32 1GZ.05 [2,881.38) (£.55) (67.11) 716.83
Az at April 01, 2022 1.072.59 249132 t02.05 {2.881.38) {0.85) {B87.11) 716.83
Chargedifcredited) during the year

to profit or loss {124.83) 1.44 4.21 36.94 0.67 {201 {8219}

o other comprehensive income .
Excess deferred tax not provided in CY 87,11 8711
Nat Charged K{Credited) during the vear -
As at Mar 31, 2023 947.77 2,492.78 106.25 (2,844 45) {0.58} {0.01} 704.76

MNote:-

The deferred tax asset has been Tecognised in the financial statements to the extent reasonable certainty that taxable income will be generated in near future

Tax toss on which tax credit not recognised in Financial Staterment

Particutars

Business Loss under the Income Tax Act

As at March 31,2023

1,463.35

1,128.13

Asg at March 31, 2022




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 30 - Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assels pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

 Miltions

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets

Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets
Total current assets pledged as security

Non-current
First charge
Intangible Asset
intangible Asset Under Development
Other non current assels
Total non-current assets pledged as security

Total assets pledged as security

Note 31 - Auditor Remuneration

431.76
16.41

7.02

28082
20.68

6.97

455.19

308.47

16399.44

16,990.18

16,399.44

16,980.19

16,854.63

17,298.66

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Audit Fees 0.25 0.25

Certification Fees 0.01 0.00
0.26 0.25




Note 32 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

Year Ended March

Year Ended

Particulars 31,2023 March 31,2022
Long term Borrowings
Opeﬁing Balance 5,580,563 5,635.28
interest convert into foan -
Changes in Fair Value

- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest 0.75 0.75
Less : Repayment During the year 555.00 55.50
Add : OCther adjustment
Closing Balance 5,026.28 5,580.53
interest Expenses
Opening 0.00 -
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 2,023.90 1,952.42
Changes in Fair Value
Interest convert into Loan -
- impact of Effective Rate of Interest {0.75} {0.75)
- Uinwinding of Discount on provisions (86.77) (41.26)
-~ Unwinding of Discount on NHAI {1,318.31) {1,264.52)
- Other
Interest paid to Lenders {607.18)} (645.88)
Closing Balance 10.89 0.00 |




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Ratio anaylsis - Note 33

Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22 Reason for change ]

1) Current ratio (a/b) 0.61 3.04 {in CY incresed in cwrrent asset as wellf

Current Assets (a) 503.23 354.22 |as increased in payment of current

Current Liabitity (b) 830.59 116.39 [liability

2} Debt Equity ratio (c/d) {13.97) 35.88 iDue to continual incurring of losses,
equity has been reduced resuiting in
negative ratio.

Debt {c} 5,021.59 5,575.85

Equity {d) (359.44) 155.41

3) Debt Service Coverage ratio ( e/f) 1.21 1.34 |Due to repayment increase in CY

EBiTDA (e) 2,099.65 1,606.43

interest on Term Loan 618.81 641.95

Principal Repayment 1,110.00 555.00

Total interest & Principal Repayment (f) 1,728.681 1,196.95

4) Return on Equity ratio (g/h) 5.05 {4.98)

Profit / {Loss) after Tax (g) (515.00) {773.55)

Average Shareholder's Equity (h) {102.02) 155.41

§) Trade Payable Turnover ratio (ifj) 0.04 0.03

Trade Payable (i) 90,72 51.75

Total Turnover{lncome) (j) 2,352.82 1,.812.27

6) Net Capital Turnover ratio (n/k) {0.14} 0.13

Total Sales (k) 2.352.82 1,812.27

Current Assets (1) 503.23 354.22

Current Liabilities (m) 830.59 116.39

Working Capital {n) {i-m} {327.36) 237.83

7) Net Profit ratio (0.22) {0.43)

Profit after Tax (m) {516.00} (773.55)

Totad Sales (n) 2,352.82 1.812.27

8) Return on Capital Employed (o/r) 0.45 0.28 {Due to loss during the year

EBITDA (0} 2,099.65 1,608.43

Net Worth (p) (359.44) 155.41

Total Debt {q} 5,021.59 5,575.85

Total Capital Employed (') {p+q} 4,662 15 5,731.26

9} Return on Investment (s/t) (5.84} 10.34 [Due to negative net worth

EBITDA (s} 2,099.65 1,606.43

Net Worth {t) {358.44) 155.41




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 34 — Contingent liabilities

FASTag Penalty : -The company has been coliecting penaily from the users for using FASTag lanes wilhoul valid FASTag, the
same has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is not payable lo
NHA{ nolwithstanding the demands from NHAL. The aggregate amount of penally collected and appropriated under income for
March 31, 2023 is Rs.22.01 Mn ( Pravious Year Rs.27.42 Mn}

The Company has received communication from NHAI for Cure Period Notice alieging breaches, which, iner alkia, include
purported non fulfitment of maintenance obligation by the company as per the requirement of Concession of Agreement. The
Company has contested the same and hence do not anlicipate any such aclion by NHAI since it is in the process of fulfiling the

required obligation(s}, wherever required.

The indirect tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 slated that the Company was nof eligible to avail
CENVAT credit as there was no oulput service liable to tax. The depariment issued an order in April 2016 demanding interest on
the CENVAT credit availed for period October 2010 1o March 2012 and penaily on account of wilful suppression of facts. The
Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appellate Tribunal. The tribunal has set aside the said adjudication
order againsl which departiment has now gone in appeal before the Hon'hle High Court of Mumbai,

Note No. 35 : - Independent Engineers / NHAI had issued various communication fo the company purportediy fowards default in
meeting the mainlenance obligation, pending punch list work / De-scope and negative scope of the company and consequentiai
penaity on the same amoufing. The company has contesled this penalties and hence no effect is considered necessary in the

financial statemanls.

Note No. 36 :The Company has negative net worth of Rs. 359.44 millions as on March 31, 2023 due 1o losses incurred in current
FY 23. Howaver net worth of the company is pesilive i FY 22 and the Company has shown year-on-year growth in traffic and its
revenue is sufficient te recover its operating costs. Further, its EBITA (Earnings before Interest, Tax and Amorlization) is positive
and is expected to increase with growing traffic over the remaining concession period and also the Company is under discussion
with the Consortium Lenders and has proposed a debt restructuring plan to improve the financial position of the company. The

company has aiso paying regularly debt servicing wilhoul any default.
In view of the above the management of the company continues to prepare the financial stalement as a "Going Concern”




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended Mar 31, 2023

Note 37. Foreign currency Exposure
The Company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency.

Note 38 - Events after reporting perfod
There are no subsequent event after the reporting period which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 39
Previous year figures have begn regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to those for current
year.

For 8 K Patodia & Associates For and on behaif of the Board
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Firm Registration No. 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria Myhbsh Gatkwad Shailendra Jain
Partner Director Diector
Membership No. : 146268 DIN:06664942 DiN:06393281
Date: 26.04.2023 Date: 26.04.2023

Place: Mumbat

Place: Mumbai






